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Message
From: Mark Underwoocf;_e_f%[mark.underwood* GRO ;
Sent: 14/07/2017 14:16:10
To: Andrew Parsons [Andrew.Parsonsé GRO i; Jane Macleod [jane.macleod: GRO H
CC: Rodric Williams [rodric.williams GRO i Amy Prime [Amy.Prime! GRO i; Elisa Lukas
[Elisa.Lukas GRO . Victoria Brooks [Victoria.Brooks! GRO i
Subject: RE: Draft Defence - Suspense Account
Thanks Andy,

SUSPENSE ACCOUNT WORDING

The wording in the drafting is pretiy vanilla, with the exception of the below which | do not think can be included {noted
it is bracketed}:

“The amounts credited to Post Office’s profit and loss account in this way are relatively small”

{ am still hopeful that by Monday we will be able to replace the above with the findings from the below procedures
which are currently Hive and will continue over the weekendl:

e Since 2010 The number of branches, whilst under the operation of Claimants, who have / have not had
sums taken to PE&L ~ along with volumaes {by branch and total}, value {by branch and total) and averages.

o Since 2010: The volume of money going in the other direction i.e. to branches, whilst under the
operation of claimants.

e That we have sample tested 15 of the most material sums taken to P&L from branches, whilst under the
operation of Claimants, and that there is svidence to prove these were taken appropriately / there is no
evidence to indicate that they were not been taken appropriately. The sample testing began this
afternoon.

The wording definitely needs to be run past Al before it goes in, but | think it is premature to do so before Monday. By
Monday, we will be in a much more mature state, in respect of the 3 bullets above. AL currently has slots in his diary on
Monday at 10 and 17:30.

REAONABLE vs NECESSARY

Unless the terms ‘reasonable’ and ‘necessary’ have particular legal meanings; to me, reasonable’ actually sounds as
though it places less of an obligation on POL? | agree that this will not be controversial,

THEORETICAL POSSIBILTIES

With reference to point “27 in your email; m not sure you would ever be able to prove that this was not a theoretical
possibility, even if you looked at every single transaction, over the lifetime of POLSAP.

Happy to talk through

Mark

Mark Underwood
Head of Portfolio: Legal, Risk & Governance

Ground Floor
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2017 Winner of the Global Postal Award 20 Finsbury Street
A London EC2Y SAGQ
for Customer Experience

Mobile number: :-

From: Andrew Parsons [mailto:Andrew.Parsons: GRO i
Sent: 14 July 2017 14:27

To: Jane MaclLeod; Mark Underwoocioaog

Cc: Rodric Williams; Amy Prime; Elisa Lukas; Victoria Brooks

Subject: Draft Defence - Suspense Account

Mark, Jane (I'm sending this direct to you as Rod is away)

I've been speaking with Tony re the Suspense Account sections. Given that Deloitte's work is ongoing, we've decided to
go very light on the drafting of this section. We're really concerned about getting the position wrong and then having to
back-track. This does expose POL to potential criticism that we have ducked an issue, but we believe this is better than
saying something that we later regret.

The proposed drafting is attached.

In preparing this, it is has highlighted a risk that has led us to slightly shift the emphasis in one of our implied terms by
adding the word "reasonable”.

"Each party would provide the other with such reasonable cooperation as was necessary {o the performance of that
other’s obligations under or by virtue of the contract.”

Although small, this change means POL needs to provide "reasonable cooperation” rather than just "necessary
cooperation”, which in effect means that POL has to cooperate a little bit more. Given our conversations with the
business over the last few days | don't believe this will be controversial.

The reason for the change is a little complicated:

1. One of the Claimant's arguments is that POL must suffer a real loss before it can recover money from an
SPMR. This means actual financial harm, rather than just a loss showing in a branch accounts.

2. The suspense account investigations have shown that it is theoretically possible that an error in a
transaction could cause a loss in a branch (which is paid by the SPMR) and also an overpayment by a
client. In effect, POL double recovers on the loss. The overpayment from the client means that Post
Office has not suffered actual financial harm and that, in the Claimant's words, the loss in the branch is
not real.

3. To combat this, we are running an argument that when clause 12.12 in the old SPMR contract refers to
POL recovering "losses" from SPMRSs, it means "losses as shown in a branch's accounts" and not "losses
that are actual financial harm to POL".

4. This interpretation effectively legitimises the ability of POL to recover branch losses without needing to
prove actual financial harm and regardless of any double recovery.

5. ltis however manifestly at risk of being unfair to a postmaster, who may end up paying Post Office even
though Post Office has not suffered financial harm. This unfairness may dissuade a judge from agreeing
with our interpretation of the word "foss" in clause 12.12.

6. We therefore hope to balance out this unfairness by saying that POL has a duty to reasonably reconcile
client payments against branch losses to avoid this possibility. To give this a legal foundation, we need to
base it our implied terms and hence we need to offer slightly more generous formulation of the
cooperation term set out above by adding the word "reasonable".

My apologies for troubling you with this highly technical legal point, but it's the cornerstone of the case and therefore I'd be
grateful for your input / approval.
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If you're happy with the above, | plan to send the "suspense account” wording to Deloitte and Al Cameron (if you agree?).

Kind regards
Andy

Andrew Parsons
Partner

Biorwd Dickinson L

Direct:
Mobile:
Office:

Fottow Bond Bickinsen

s honddickinson.com
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This email and any attachments are confidential and intended for the addressee only. If you are not the named
recipient, you must not use, disclose, reproduce, copy or distribute the contents of this communication. If you
have received this in error, please contact the sender by reply email and then delete this email from your system.

Any views or opinions expressed within this email are solely those of the sender, unless otherwise specifically
stated.

POST OFFICE LIMITED is registered in England and Wales no 2154540. Registered Office: Finsbury Dials,
20 Finsbury Street, London EC2Y 9AQ.

POL-0021250



POL00024771
POL00024771

POL-0021250



